
 

            `                                                                                                        
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

PZHAC WORKSHOP & MEETING 
AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2020  
 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL 
HOLD A WORK SESSION VIA TELECONFERENCE ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 AT 2:30 P.M. TO 
JOIN THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 
PASSWORD 193857. 
 

A. Discussion of replacing windows (Case 061051) on a dwelling at 2447 Calle del Norte, submitted by Matilde 
Estrada. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 

B. Discussion of a combined barn and guest house (Case 061084) to be built on a property at 2515 Snow Road, 
submitted by John and Judy Harris. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 

 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL 
HOLD A REGULAR MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, AUGUST 17, 
2020 AT 3:00 P.M. TO JOIN THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 
603-754-4231 PASSWORD 193857. 
  
I.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  
 
III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
IV. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one 
motion unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 

A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Workshop and Meeting of August 3, 2020. 
B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 

Zoning Permit: 
1. Case 061102 - 2785 Boldt Street, submitted by Barncastle Construction for NovaSight Properties, LLC; a 

request for a zoning permit to allow the renovation of the interior of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: 
Historical Residential (HR) 

2. Case 061104 – 2371 Calle de Santiago, submitted by Richard Lucero; a request for a zoning permit to 
repair and repaint the stucco on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 

3. Case 061105 – 1717 West Boutz Road, submitted by John Wright; a request for a zoning permit to reroof 
the apartment structure at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC)   

4. Case 061106 – 3215 Snow Road, submitted by Jeanne Rundell; a request for a zoning permit to repair a 
wall on a dwelling at this address that had been hit by a car. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 

5. Case 061107 – 2245 Calle de Colon, submitted by Roberto Garcia; a request for a zoning permit to patch 
and repaint portions of the stucco on a wall at the front of the residential property at this address. Zoned: 
Historical Residential (HR) 
 

   V. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
A.  PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES  

Public input shall be received at larrys@mesillanm.gov at least one hour prior to the meeting and will be 
read into the record. You will also be given an opportunity to speak during this time by joining the meeting 
by phone and pressing *9 while in the teleconference. This will let the host know that you wish to speak. 
You will be prompted by the host or the Commission Chair when to begin speaking.  
 

mailto:larrys@mesillanm.gov


 

 
B.  DECISIONS:  

Zoning Permits: 
1. Case 061051 – 2447 Calle del Norte, submitted by Matilde Estrada; a request for a zoning permit to allow 

the replacement of nine windows on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
(Postponed at the June 15, 2020 PZHAC meeting) 

2. Case 061084 –2515 Snow Road, submitted by John and Judy Harris, a request for a zoning permit to allow 
the construction of a combined barn and guest house on the property at this location. Zoned: Rural Farm 
(RF) (Postponed at the June 15, 2020 PZHAC meeting) 

3. Case 061100 – 2120 Calle del Sur, submitted by Davie Salas; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
placement of four latia fences on a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
(Postponed at the June 15, 2020 PZHAC meeting) 

4. Case 061108 – 2510 Calle de Parian, submitted by F. Xavier Alcala; a request for a zoning permit to repaint 
a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 

5. Case 061109 – 2755 Calle de San Albino, submitted by Teresa Sanchez for ETMSS 2, LLC; a request for a 
zoning permit to replace three windows on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 

6. Case 061110 – 105 Capri Road, submitted by J. Brooks Wolle; a request for a zoning permit to place two 
small storage sheds on a residential property at this address as a replacement of an older storage shed on the 
property. Zoned: Residential, one acre minimum (R-1) 

 
Business Permits 
7. Permit 0854 – 1750 Calle de Mercado, Suite 4, submitted by Tatsu Miyazaki for “World Class Gourmet, 

LLC”; a request for a business license to allow the applicant s to operate a restaurant and catering operation 
at this location. Zoned: General Commercial (C)  

8. Permit 0855 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Roman Prieto for “Prieto Imports”;  a request for a 
business license to allow the applicant to operate a commercial retail operation at this location selling 
imported yard art and décor, Mexican pottery, custom wood chairs, and other imported and domestic gift 
items. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC)  
 

Sign Permit 
9. Case 061112 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Roman Prieto for “Prieto Imports”; a request for a 

sign permit to install a sign on a business at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
 
 VI. PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS  
    
VII. ADJOURNMENT   

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing 
or meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

Posted on 9/2/20 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public 
Safety Building - 2670 Calle de Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; 
Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Ristramnn Chile Co. - 2531 Avenida de Mesilla 
and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 



 

  

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

  



PZHAC WORK SESSION 
ZONING PERMIT 061051 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/8/2020] 
 

Item: 
Case 061051 – 2447 Calle del Norte, submitted by Matilde Estrada; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
replacement of nine windows on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
 
This case was heard by the PZHAC on June 1 and June 15, 2020 and was postponed further in order to allow the 
applicant to present additional information showing that two of windows being replaced match the style of the 
windows they are replacing. According to the applicant, Window World does not have windows that match the two 
windows in question (shown in the attached photos). The applicant will add framing to the outside of the windows 
after they are installed to match the framing of the windows being replaced. (This will be discussed at the work 
session.) Additionally, the applicant would like the frames of all the windows to be almond colored instead of dark 
brown.  This was the color of the original windows before the existing windows were installed.  
  
Description of the Request: 
The applicant would like to replace all the windows on the dwelling with new windows that are in better condition and 
are more thermally efficient. The windows will be the same size as the original windows and will be similar in 
appearance (see attached descriptions) but not identical to the existing windows. The existing windows are set in in 
metal frames throughout and are brown. The replacement windows will be set in aluminum and will be almond in color.  
 
The structure is in the Historic Register (see attached) and appears to have been built around 1940. Attached are the 
Historical Registry worksheet and the description sheet for the structure which were submitted by the Town as part of 
the application for inclusion in the Historical Register in 1980 (see attached). The structure was described as being 
similar to its surroundings but not contributing architecturally to its surroundings. According to the Register, the 
structure does not have significance to the historical nature of the Town. The dwelling also appears to have had a 
moderate degree of remodeling since its construction.  
 
Consistency with the Code:  
At the June 1 PZHAC meeting, the PZHAC will determined that all but two of the widows would be compatible with the 
style of the structure and the surrounding properties and would be consistent with the Code. following sections of the 
Code: 

Chapter 18.35 HR – Historical Residential Zone 
The windows could be compatible with the HR zoning of the property if the PZHAC determines that the 
replacement windows enhance the Historical nature of the dwelling.  
 
Chapter 18.33 – Historic Preservation 
18.33.040 Declaration of purpose and statement of public policy. 
A. The board of trustees declares that the historical heritage of Mesilla and its historic buildings and its historic 
districts are among its most valued and important assets. The board finds that some buildings having historical, 
architectural, aesthetic and cultural value have been neglected, altered or destroyed notwithstanding the feasibility 
of preserving and continuing the use of such buildings and without adequate consideration of the irreplaceable loss 
to the public and the town. The board finds that the historic character of Mesilla is of vital importance in 
maintaining the economy of the town and that its historic landmarks and the buildings in its historic district can be 
preserved, rehabilitated and used. The board finds that this chapter benefits all the residents of Mesilla and all the 
owners of property.  
 

Estimated Cost: @ $3,000.00 
   
Findings that need to be made: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and recommend approval of this request to the BOT. 
• The proposed work consists of replacing windows on a dwelling at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 



PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the building permit to the BOT.   
2. Recommend approval of the building to the BOT with conditions.  
3. Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
  



Doña Ana County, NM 
General Reference Maps

Select Search Type: 2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points 

Map Themes
Parcels 

UDC Zoning

Roads and Transportation

NM House Districts

NM Senate Districts

County Commission Districts

City Council Districts

Median Household Income

General Land Ownership

Account Number: R0400180
Parcel Number: 4006137051457
Owner: ESTRADA MATILDE G
Mail Address: PO BOX 742
Subdivision:
Property Address: 2447 CALLE DEL 
NORTE
Acres: 0.61

Maps Legend

+
–



cynthia
Rectangle

cynthia
Rectangle

cynthia
Rectangle

cynthia
Rectangle



cynthia
Rectangle





















 
PZHAC WORK SESSION 
ZONING PERMIT 061051 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/8/2020] 
 
 

Discussion of a combined barn and guest house (Case 061084) to be built on a property at 2515 Snow Road, submitted by 
John and Judy Harris. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 

This case was heard by the PZHAC on August 3 and 17, 2020 and was postponed further because the PZHAC 
determined that the lot line created in the 1970’s for tax purposes did not create a legally recognized subdivided 
lot, based on a legal opinion for another case from Joseph Cervantes, Attorney for the Town, dated April 20, 
2020. As a result, the Town does not recognize the four acre parcel and the one acre parcel as separate properties, 
but as one five acre parcel. Therefore, the proposed accessory dwelling can only be considered as a guest house 
subservient to the main dwelling, and limited to a size of 600 square feet by the Code.   

The applicant has submitted a new floorplan (attached) for the proposed “guest house” showing the dwelling 
limited to 600 square feet. The overall size and plans for the proposed barn have not changed. 

DESCRIPTION OF ORIGINAL REQUEST: 
The applicants would like to build a combination barn and dwelling on a property they own that is adjacent to the 
property they live on. According to the applicants, the dwelling will be for their daughter to live in, and the remainder of 
the barn will be used to store equipment that they use in the pecan groves that are located on the two properties. The 
property to be occupied by the barn/dwelling is currently occupied by a pecan grove and a small storage building. There 
are no other structures on the property. Since the dwelling portion of the barn is over 600 square feet in size, the 
applicants have been informed that this will be considered the primary dwelling on the property if they ever decide to 
build a second dwelling on the property. (Secondary dwellings in the R  F zone are considered “Guest Houses” and are 
limited to a maximum of 600 square feet.) The applicants have stated that the reason for combining the dwelling and the 
barn is that this is the most economical way for them to build both uses. 

The barn will be a 40 foot by 50 foot (2000 square feet) metal Mueller building. The dwelling will occupy about 850 
square feet of the barn (see attached floorplan and elevations). The applicants have been informed that due to the fact 
that the dwelling will be over 600 square feet in size, the dwelling will be considered the primary residence on this 
property, if the property is recognized by the Town as a legal property. 

According to Tom Maese, Chief building Inspector for CID, there will need to be a firewall between the dwelling and 
the storage sides of the barn based on the fact that the two uses are completely different types of occupancies. 
Additionally, according to the RF zoning code for the property, any new electrical service to the barn will need to be 
underground.  

Consistency with the Code:  
The property is zoned Rural Farm (RF). The PZHAC will need to determine if the subject four acre lot is recognized as a 
separate subdivided lot from the original five acres according to MTC 18.60.180 stated below; and the proposed work 
barn/dwelling meets the requirements of the RF zone for this type of structure: 
 
Chapter 18.20 RF – RURAL FARM ZONE 
18.20.020 Permitted uses. 

A lot in the RF zone shall be used for the following purposes only: 
 A. A farm or ranch. 
 B. A one-family home, only as an accessory to the primary agricultural use. 

J. Accessory structures and uses such as barns, corrals, sheds, pens and similar structures customarily 
incidental to any of the above uses, when located on the same lot. 

 
18.20.050 Development standards. 

E. Utilities. All installation of utility lines shall be underground, wherever technically feasible. [Ord. 2004-7 § 3; 
Ord. 2004-01 § 2; Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-11.1.E] 

 
 



 
 
Chapter 18.60 GENERAL PROVISIONS, CONDITIONS AND EXCEPTIONS 
18.60.180 Area requirements deemed met. 

Any lot or building site shall meet the minimum area requirements when: 
A. It existed as an entire lot, or as an entire parcel, for which either a deed was on record in the office of the 

county recorder or a bona fide contract of sale was in effect prior to the effective date of the ordinance 
codified in this section. 

B. It is legally subdivided after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this section. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; 
prior code § 11-2-5.18] 

 
Additionally, as per a legal opinion from the Town Attorney dated April 21, 2020 referring to a similar case in 
which properties smaller than the required five acres were “created” in the RF zone, the following rationale would 
also apply to this property: 
 

The property is zoned RF Rural Farm under Chapter 18.20. The RF zoning requires a minimum area of 5 
acres for "each lot". MTC 18.20.050 
 
The word "Lot" is defined by the MTC 18.10.020 as follows: 
 
"Lot" means a portion of a legally platted subdivision that is shown as a lot, tract or parcel of land and held in 
separate ownership, as shown on the record of the County assessor. A legal lot is a parcel that has been divided 
in accordance with present or past zoning and subdivision requirements. (italics added). 
 
The MTC definition for a "lot", which requires the showing of a "legally platted subdivision". MTC 18.10.020. 
The mere dividing of land is not a "subdivision" within the statutory subdivision law. State ex rel. Anaya v. 
Select Western Lands, Inc., 1979-NMCA-161, 94 N.M. 555, writ quashed, 613 P.2d 425. 
 
The burden is upon an applicant … to demonstrate the existence of a lawful subdivision. The burden is 
not on the Town of Mesilla to research the property or title history for a lawful subdivision. 
 
The policy implications for a lawful subdivision are well established under New Mexico law. Imposition of 
subdivision controls is a classic exercise of state police power to preserve the health, safety and general 
welfare of the community. Udall v. Cresswell, 1998-NMCA-072, 125 N.M. 276, 960 P.2d 818. The purpose 
of subdivision laws is to ensure that planned development is regulated by state, county, and municipal 
authorities so that subdivided land areas do not become a burden on the taxpayers of the state. McGanJ1 
v. Scott, 2003-NMSC-016, 134 N.M. 32, 72 P.3d 608 
 

It was determined by the Town that the property is not recognized as having been legally subdivided and the 
property is still part of the original five acres, therefore the proposed dwelling can onl be allowed as a “Guest 
House”, and will be limited in size to 600 square feet. 
 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of the Building and 
Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
The applicant will be present at the work session to provide further details about the proposed construction, 
and to answer any questions that may arise. 
 

 
 





 
VIEW OF THE APPLICANT’S DWELLING FROM SNOW ROAD 

 

VIEW OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FROM SNOW ROAD 

 





















 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC 

WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

AUGUST 17, 2020 

 

 

(PART OF CONSENT AGENDA) 

 

  



 

           `                                                                                                        
 
 
 
 
 

 
PZHAC WORKSHOP & MEETING 

AGENDA 
AUGUST 17, 2020  

 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL 
HOLD A WORK SESSION VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, AUGUST 17, 2020 AT 2:30 P.M. TO 
JOIN THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 
PASSWORD 193857. 
 

 A. Discussion of a combined barn and dwelling (Case 061084) to be built on a property adjacent to the south side 
of 2515 Snow Road (address to be assigned), submitted by John and Judy Harris. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 
The applicant was present by zoom to discuss the request and answer any questions that might arise.  Staff 
provided a brief introduction of the case, explaining that the application had been postponed to this meeting 
to allow staff to obtain more information as to the creation of the lot on which the barn/dwelling is to be 
built. Discussion included the fact that the legal opinion that the Town had obtained for a similar case 
concerning the creation of filing of lot lines with Dona Ana County for tax purposes did not result in the 
creation of a new lot and was not the same as a subdivision of the property Additionally, a new survey of the 
property provided by the applicant showed that the original property was less than the five acres that the 
applicant assumed she and her husband had bought, and that the size of the property may have been 
misrepresented by the seller in the 1970’s. The fact that the four acre property is not recognized by the 
PZHAC as being separate from the one acre property also means that the dwelling will be considered as a 
guest house to the main dwelling, and that the maximum size will be 600 square feet.  There was no further 
discussion.   
 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL 
HOLD A REGULAR MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, AUGUST 17, 2020 AT 3:00 P.M. 
TO JOIN THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 
PASSWORD 193857. 
  
I.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  

Attendance was electronic via “Zoom”.  Commissioners Nevarez and Houston were absent. All other PZHAC 
members were present. Commissioner Lucero was acting chair. 
 
Others in attendance by “Zoom” or by phone were: Mayor Barraza, Cynthia Stoehner-Hernandez (staff), Judy 
Harris, Jon Strain, Billy Rogers and Susan Krueger. The regular meeting was convened at 3:20 pm. 

 
III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Case 061084 was removed from the agenda to allow the applicant to provide a new set of plans to staff 
recognizing the dwelling as a “guest house”. Commissioner Prieto made a motion to approve the Agenda as 
amended, seconded by Commissioner Salas, and approved by a vote of 3 – 0. 

 
IV. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one 
motion unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 
There were no changes to the Consent Agenda. Commissioner Prieto made a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda, seconded by Commissioner Salas, and approved by a vote of 3 – 0. 
 

A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Workshop and Meeting of August 3, 2020. 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
 



 

 
B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 

Zoning Permit: 
1. Case 061093 – 2830 Teresita Street, submitted by Shirley Stotz; a request for a zoning permit to install 

solar panels on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 

2. Case 061094 – 2320 calle de Santiago, submitted by Martha Liefeld; a request for a zoning permit to repair 
a roof and an adobe parapet on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR)  
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 

3. Case 061096 – 2080 Calle de Parian, submitted by Charles Rogers for the “Billy the Kid” gift shop; a 
request for a zoning permit to replace an existing exit door. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 

4. Case 061097 – 2080 Calle de Parian, submitted by Charles Rogers for the “Billy the Kid” gift shop; a 
request for a zoning permit to repair the Territorial facade at the northwest entrance to the building. Zoned: 
Historical Commercial (HC) 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 

5. Case 601098 - 2610 Calle Tercera, submitted by Samuel Kane; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
painting of two duplexes on the property at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 

Sign Permis: 
6. Case 061101– 2385 Calle de Parian, submitted by Charles Rogers for “Billy the Kid Gift Shop”; a request 

for a sign permit to repaint an existing sign on a gift shop at this location. Zoned: Historical Commercial 
(HC) 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
 

   V. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
A.  PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES  

Public input shall be received at larrys@mesillanm.gov at least one hour prior to the meeting and will be 
read into the record. You will also be given an opportunity to speak during this time by joining the meeting 
by phone and pressing *9 while in the teleconference. This will let the host know that you wish to speak. 
You will be prompted by the host or the Commission Chair when to begin speaking. 
Staff stated that two e-mails had been received from Susan Krueger, resident. Staff read the e-mails for 
inclusion into the record. (Copies of the e-mails are attached at the end of these minutes.) 

 
B.  DECISIONS:  

Zoning Permits: 
1. Case 061046 – 1850 Calle de Mesilla, submitted by Samantha Simpson for Nancy Clayshulte; a request for 

a zoning permit to install a farm fence along the east side of a pecan grove on this property. Zoned: Historic 
Commercial (HC) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, including the fact that this case had been postponed by the 
PZHAC at their May 18, 2020 PZHAC meeting in order to allow the applicant to present further 
information, including a survey of the property showing the proposed location of the fence, as well as 
descriptions of the type of fence to be installed. The main issue with the request was the style of the fence 
and the fact that the property is at the gateway to the Town. The main concern was that proposed style of 
fence would not fit the historical image of the Town, and that the fence should be made of some other 
material.  A motion was made by Commissioner Prieto to postpone the case to allow the applicant to 
return to the PZHAC at a work session to discuss the fence,  seconded by Commissioner Salas, and 
POSTPONED by a vote of 3 – 0. 
 

2. Case 061084 –Snow Road (adjacent to the south side of 2515 Snow Road – address to be assigned) 
submitted by John and Judy Harris, a request for a zoning permit to allow the construction of a combined 
barn and dwelling on the subject property at this location. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 
This case was removed from the agenda. 
 

3. Case 061085 – 2852 Erminda Street, submitted by Eric and Cindy Van Pelt; a request for a zoning permit 
to allow the construction of a pergola over a patio at the rear of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical 
Residential (HR)  
 

mailto:larrys@mesillanm.gov


 

Staff provided a brief review of this request, including the fact that this case had been postponed at the 
August 3, 20210 PZHAC meeting in order to allow the applicant to modify the pergola plans to meet the 
required five foot rear setbacks. Staff stated the new plans did meet the setbacks. There were no other 
issues.  A motion was made by Commissioner Prieto to recommend approval of the modified request to 
the BOT, seconded by Commissioner Salas, and APPROVED by a vote of 3 – 0. 
 

4. Case 061088 – 2067 Stithes Road, submitted by Jon Strain; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
construction of a garage/workshop on a residential property at this address. Zoned: Rural/Agricultural (RA) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, including the fact that this case had been postponed at the 
August 3, 20210 PZHAC meeting in order to allow staff to obtain a legal opinion (attached at the end of 
these minutes) from the Town Attorney, Joseph Cervantes, as to whether the small size of the property 
with respect to its RA resulted in the property being considered legal non-conforming, and whether a 
legal non-conforming property could be built on. It was determined that the legal opinion considered that 
the property is indeed legal non-conforming and that any use of the property would be legal non-
conforming and therefore could not be expanded. Since the PZHAC determined that building a new 
structure would be an expansion of the legal non-conforming use of the property, and that any new 
construction is not allowed by the Code. There were no other issues.  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Prieto to deny the requested Zoning Permit, seconded by Commissioner Salas, and 
DENIED by a vote of 3 – 0. 
 

5. Case 061099– 2230 Calle de Santiago, submitted by Martha Liefeld; a request for a zoning permit to allow 
the installation of an adobe wall and latia fence on a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historical 
Residential (HR) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, including the fact that this case had been reviewed with the 
Styles Review Committee to ensure that the required information had been provided by the applicant and 
that the proposed fence was allowed by the Mesilla Codes.  It was determined that no Right-of-Entry 
agreement had been submitted with the application, therefore the application was not compete.  A motion 
was made by Commissioner Prieto to postpone the request, seconded by Commissioner Salas, and the 
request was POSTPONED by a vote of 3 – 0. 
  

6. Case 061100 – 2120 Calle del Sur, submitted by Davie Salas; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
placement of four latia fences on a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
Due to the fact that a quorum would not be present once Commissioner Salas recused himself from 
voting on the case, which he had submitted, the case was postponed to the September 8, 2020 PZHAC 
meeting.   
 

 VI. PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS  
Commissioner Salas, referring to Case 061084, wanted to know if a decision could be made on the case prior to a 
survey being done that combined the two properties. Staff responded that if the PZHAC did not recognize the  line 
drawn on the map for tax purposes as being a property line, there was no reason for it to be formally removed.  
 
Staff, referring to a demolition that had taken place in Town without a permit, stated that the Code should be 
amended to specifically address demolitions of structures in all parts of Mesilla and not just in the Historic 
Districts.   

    
VII. ADJOURNMENT 
        The meeting was adjourned at 4:05 pm.   

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing 
or meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

Posted on 8/13/20 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public 
Safety Building - 2670 Calle de Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; 
Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Ristramnn Chile Co. - 2531 Avenida de Mesilla 
and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 
 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 

(PART OF CONSENT AGENDA) 

 

  



 ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061102 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA –9/8/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061102 - 2785 Boldt Street, submitted by Barncastle Construction for NovaSight Properties, LLC; a 
request for a zoning permit to allow the renovation of the interior of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: 
Historical Residential (HR) 
   
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will renovate the inside of a dwelling, altering the interior walls of a bathroom, living room 
and kitchen.. There will be no changes to the outside of the dwelling or any other parts of the property.  
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the proposed solar renovation will not affect or change the appearance of the property, according to 
the applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the 
structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building 
permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor 
repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any 
other permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the Community Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM BOLDT STREET 

 
 

  











ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061104 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA – 9/8/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061104 – 2371 Calle de Santiago, submitted by Richard Lucero; a request for a zoning permit to 
repair and repaint the stucco on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
   
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will repair and repaint portions of the stucco on a dwelling at this address.  There will be no 
structural changes to the dwelling and the repairs will be repainted to match the original color of the 
dwelling. There will be no changes to the appearance of the dwelling or any other parts of the property.  
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the proposed repairs will not affect or change the appearance of the property, according to the 
applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the 
structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building 
permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor 
repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any 
other permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the Community Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM CALLE DE SANTIAGO 

 
 
 

  







ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061105 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA – 9/8/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061105 – 1717 West Boutz Road, submitted by John Wright; a request for a zoning permit to reroof 
the apartment structure at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
   
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will reroof an apartment building at this address. Part of the roof to be replaced is a flat roof 
and part is covered with Spanish tile. The tile portion will be replaced with tile of the same style and 
color. The will be no other changes to the structure as a result of this permit.  
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the replacement of the roof will not affect or change the appearance of the property, according to 
the applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the 
structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building 
permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor 
repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any 
other permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the Community Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM WEST BOUTZ ROAD 

 
 
 

  









ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061106 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA –9/8/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061106 – 3215 Snow Road, submitted by Jeanne Rundell; a request for a zoning permit to repair a 
wall on a dwelling at this address that had been hit by a car. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 
   
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will repair a wall that was badly damaged by a car. The damage is to both the inside and 
exterior of the dwelling, causing damage to a bathroom that was on the inside of the wall. (The bathroom 
will be upgraded as part of the repairs.) The repairs will result in the exterior of the wall being brought to 
back to its original appearance. The façade will be returned to its original appearance and the whole 
repaired area repainted to match the rest of the wall. The repairs door will match the original in style and 
color. There will be no changes to the exterior of the structure as a result of these repairs.   
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the repairs will not affect or change the appearance of the exterior of the structure, according to the 
applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the 
structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building 
permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor 
repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any 
other permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the Community Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM SNOW ROAD 

 

























ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061107 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA –9/8/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061107 – 2245 Calle de Colon, submitted by Roberto Garcia; a request for a zoning permit to patch 
and repaint portions of the stucco on a wall at the front of the residential property at this address. Zoned: 
Historical Residential (HR) 
 
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will repair cracks in a stuccoed wall that runs across the front of the property near the street. 
The repairs will consist of paching the cracks and worn portions of the wall, and then repainting the 
patched areas to match the remainder of the wall. There will be no changes to in appearance to the wall or 
any of the structures on the property.  
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the repairs will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the structure, the 
permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building permit, 
Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor repairs 
or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any other 
permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the Community Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM CALLE DE COLON  

 
 







 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 

 

PZHAC DECISIONS 

ZONING PERMITS 

 

  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061051 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/8/2020] 

 
Items: 
Case 061051 – 2447 Calle del Norte, submitted by Matilde Estrada; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
replacement of nine windows on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting. (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed windows are acceptable to the Town as proposed and meets all applicable codes, or if 
an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the Code will be 
satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed windows are not acceptable to the Town or does not meet all 
applicable codes, and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until 
the applicant can return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the 
request based on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed. 
 

 
Estimated Cost: @ $75,000.00 
 
Findings That Need to be Made. 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed windows are historically and architecturally appropriate for the 

Town.   
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.  Approval of the requested zoning permit.  
2.  Approval of the requested zoning permit with conditions.   
3.  Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061084 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/8/2020] 

 
Items: 
Case 061084 –2515 Snow Road, submitted by John and Judy Harris, a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
construction of a combined barn and guest house on the property at this location. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting. (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed barn/guest house is acceptable to the Town as proposed and meets all applicable 
codes, or if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the 
Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed barn/guest house is not acceptable to the Town or does not meet 
all applicable codes, and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further 
until the applicant can return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny 
the request based on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed. 

 
Estimated Cost: @ $75,000.00 
 
Findings That Need to be Made. 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed consists of building a barn and guest house on a five acre property containing a principal dwelling 

and a pecan grove.   
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed bzarn and guest house meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.  Approval of the requested zoning permit.  
2.  Approval of the requested zoning permit with conditions.   
3.  Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061100 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/8/2020] 

 
 
Case 061100 – 2120 Calle del Sur, submitted by Davie Salas; a request for a zoning permit to allow the placement of four 
latia fences on a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR)  
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant would like to install four six foot high latia fences around the ends of the two duplexes on the 
property at this address (see red lines on the attached site plan) to provide privacy to the dwellings. The style 
of the fences will be similar to the latia fence at the front of the dwelling at 2219 Calle de Parian (see attached 
photo). According to the applicant, the fences will be six feet in height, and will be made of latias on wood or 
metal uprights. The fences at the front of the property will be at least ten feet from the pavement and will be 
outside the required clear-sight-triangle for driveways. A right-of-entry agree with the neighbor to the rear of 
the property is attached.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $2000.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed fences will be consistent with the development of 
properties in the HR district. Additionally, the request appears to meet all other development and application 
requirements of the Code.  
  
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of 
the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of installing four six foot high latia fences on a residential properties for 

privacy. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed fences meet the Code. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the fences to the BOT.   
2. Recommend approval of the fences to the BOT with conditions.  
3. Reject the permit.  

 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
 
 
  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061085 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 8/17/2020] 

 
Items: 
Case 061108 – 2510 Calle de Parian, submitted by F. Xavier Alcala; a request for a zoning permit to repaint a dwelling at 
this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
The applicant has just recently purchased the dwelling from the estate of the previous owner who passed in December 
2019 and painted the dwelling prior to obtaining a zoning permit from the Town. The current owner (the applicant) was 
advised by staff that a zoning permit is needed for all work that is done the exteriors of  any structures or properties in 
the Historic Districts of Mesilla, and that certain historic and architectural standards need to be reviewed and approved 
by the PZHAC and the BOT.  
 
The colors chosen by the applicant, an off white and a medium blue (see attached photos), are very similar or identical to 
colors that are in the palette of acceptable color for the Town (see attached color charts). The PZHAC will need to 
determine that the colors used are not be out of character with the colors of other dwellings in the Historic Residential 
district.   
 
ESTIMATED COST: @ $1500.00 
 
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed paint colors are consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) 

shall be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall 
determine whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be 
determined to be inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the 
building or structure involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved 
without substantial detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of 
this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in 
addition to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed consists of repainting a dwelling at this address.    
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.  Recommend approval of the request to the BOT.  
2.  Recommend approval of the request to the BOT.  
3.  Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
  





 
PHOTOS OF DWELLING FROM CALLE DE PARIAN 

 

 









 
 

PZHAC ACTION FORM 
ZONING PERMIT 061109 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/8/2020] 
 
Items: 
Case 061109 – 2755 Calle de San Albino, submitted by Teresa Sanchez for ETMSS 2, LLC; a request for a zoning permit 
to replace three windows on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
 
The applicant would like to replace three windows on the dwelling with new windows that are in better condition and are 
more thermally efficient. The windows will be the same size as the original windows and the window panes will be the 
same size and pattern as the windows being replaced. The existing windows are set in in deteriorating or broken wood 
frames (see attached photos) and are painted in different shades of brown.  The replacement windows will be set in 
aluminum and will be either architectural bronze grids and white frames, or gray grids and frames; to try to match the 
window being replaced.    
 
The structure is in the Historic Register (see attached) and appears to have been built around 1940. Attached are the 
Historical Registry worksheet and the description sheet for the structure which were submitted by the Town as part of 
the application for inclusion in the Historical Register in 1980 (see attached). The structure was described as being 
similar to its surroundings but not contributing architecturally to the Town. According to the Register, the structure does 
not have significance to the historical nature of the Town. The dwelling also appears to have had a minor degree of 
remodeling since its construction.  
 
Consistency with the Code: The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed windows will be compatible with the 
style of the structure and the surrounding properties, and the proposed windows will be consistent with the following 
sections of the Code: 

Chapter 18.35 HR – Historical Residential Zone 
The windows could be compatible with the HR zoning of the property if the PZHAC determines that the 
replacement windows enhance the Historical nature of the dwelling.  
 
Chapter 18.33 – Historic Preservation 
18.33.040 Declaration of purpose and statement of public policy. 
A. The board of trustees declares that the historical heritage of Mesilla and its historic buildings and its historic 
districts are among its most valued and important assets. The board finds that some buildings having historical, 
architectural, aesthetic and cultural value have been neglected, altered or destroyed notwithstanding the feasibility 
of preserving and continuing the use of such buildings and without adequate consideration of the irreplaceable loss 
to the public and the town. The board finds that the historic character of Mesilla is of vital importance in 
maintaining the economy of the town and that its historic landmarks and the buildings in its historic district can be 
preserved, rehabilitated and used. The board finds that this chapter benefits all the residents of Mesilla and all the 
owners of property.  
 

Estimated Cost: @ $5,000.00 
   
Findings that need to be made: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and recommend approval of this request to the BOT. 
• The proposed work consists of replacing windows on a dwelling at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the building permit to the BOT.   
2. Recommend approval of the building to the BOT with conditions.  
3. Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 

 
 





 
VIEW OF DWELLING FROM CALLE DE SAN ALBINO 

 
 

VIEW OF REAR OF DWELLING 

 
 

  

















 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061110 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/8/2020] 

 
Items: 
Case 061110 – 105 Capri Road, submitted by J. Brooks Wolle; a request for a zoning permit to place two small storage 
sheds on a residential property at this address as a replacement of an older storage shed on the property. Zoned: 
Residential, one acre minimum (R-1) 
 
The applicant would like to replace a small tool shed on this property with two slightly larger (8 ft. by 12 ft.) wooden 
sheds (see attached image) on a 0.27 acre property at this address.  The two sheds will be located at the rear of the 
property and will not be attached to the ground. They are under 120 square feet in size and do not require any kind of 
building permits from CID because they are not considered permanent structures. The colors of the sheds will fit in with 
the colors of the dwellings and other sheds in the surrounding area.   
 
Consistency with the Code:  
Since the property is less than the one acre required for properties in the R-1 zoning district, the property is legal non- 
conforming. Since legal non-conforming uses may be maintained and repaired but not expanded, according to the legal 
opinion dated August 14, 2020 (attached) from the Town Attorney, Joseph Cervantes, one of the sheds is a replacement of 
an existing shed and can be considered maintenance of a legal non-conforming use. The PZHAC will need to determine if 
the second shed would result in the expansion of a legal non-conforming use, or if it could be allowed because it is a 
temporary use due to the fact that it is small and portable and is not permanently attached to the propertyn or does it 
require any kind of a permit from CID. The following are the portions of the Code that deal with legal non-conforming 
uses:  

18.60.050 Nonconforming uses cannot be expanded. 
A nonconforming use of land or of a building shall not be expanded since it is the purpose of this title to 
eliminate nonconforming uses at the earliest possible time. However, in a Commercial (C) zone existing 
single-family residences may be permitted to continue on any lot or parcel of land not used for the indicated 
zone purposes without being classified as a nonconforming use. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-5.5] 
 
18.60.060 Nonconforming use of land. 
The nonconforming use of land, where no main buildings are involved, may be continued for a period of not 
to exceed five years after the effective date of the ordinance codified in the title, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
A. No nonconforming use of land shall be expanded or extended in any way. 
 
B. Where such nonconforming use of land is discontinued for a period of six months, any future use of the 
land shall be in conformity with the provisions of this title. 
 
C. These provisions do not apply to land used for agriculture or agriculturally related activities. 
 
D. When the nonconforming use is trailers, no additional nor replacement trailers may be used on the lot. 
[Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-5.6] 
 
18.60.070 Nonconforming building may be maintained. 
A nonconforming building may be maintained; provided, that no additions, enlargements nor structural 
alterations are made except those required by law or expressly permitted by this title. If any such 
nonconforming building is removed, future use of the land on which the building is located shall conform to 
this title. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-5.7] 
 
18.60.080 Alteration of nonconforming buildings as to yard regulations. 
A building or structure which does not conform to the yard regulations may be structurally altered; 
provided, such alteration does not change the horizontal exterior dimensions, or the addition either conforms 
to the applicable yard regulations or does not project further into any yard than any substantial portion of 
the existing building or structure. “Substantial portion” for the purpose of this section shall mean 50 percent 
or more of the length of the wall. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-5.8] 
 



 
18.60.090 Nonconforming use of conforming building. 
When a nonconforming use of a conforming building existed at the time the provisions of this title became 
applicable to such building so as to make the use thereof a nonconforming use, it may be continued and may 
be expanded or extended throughout such building, provided no structural alterations are made except those 
required by law. If the nonconforming use is discontinued for more than 12 months, any future use of such 
building shall conform to this title. If the nonconforming use is commercial, a different commercial 
enterprise, offering different products and/or services, may occupy the building if that enterprise is 
compatible with the residential nature of the neighborhood. Incompatible enterprises might include: 
 
A. Those which generate loud noises, offensive odors, or unhealthy or annoying substances. 
 
B. Those which involve outdoor storage or parking of large or unsightly equipment or supplies. 
 
C. Those which generate extensive traffic. 
 
D. Those that do not meet the parking requirements (MTC 18.60.170). 
 
E. Those which are sources of light or sound which might annoy neighbors between 10:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. 
 
A public hearing will be held by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission to discuss 
each new nonconforming commercial enterprise before that enterprise is recommended for approval. All 
residents and property owners within 300 feet of the proposed nonconforming use will be notified of the 
public hearing by registered mail. [Ord. 95-03 § 5; Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-5.9] 
 
18.60.100 Nonconforming use of a nonconforming building. 
The nonconforming use of a nonconforming building may be continued and may be expanded or extended 
throughout such building provided no structural alterations are made except those required by law. If such 
nonconforming use is discontinued, any future use of such building shall conform to the provisions of this 
title. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-5.10] 
 
18.60.110 Reconstruction of nonconforming buildings partially destroyed. 
This title shall not prevent the repair of any nonconforming building damaged by fire, explosion, earthquake 
or other act of God subsequent to the effective date of the ordinance codified in this title; provided, that such 
repair shall not exceed 50 percent of the floor area of the building nor shall the dollar value of such repair 
exceed 50 percent of the dollar value of the building immediately prior to the damage. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior 
code § 11-2-5.11] 
 
18.60.120 Nonconforming uses and nonconforming buildings resulting from reclassification. 
This title shall also apply to buildings and uses which become nonconforming due to future reclassification of 
zones or land. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-5.12] 
 

Estimated Cost: @ $2,8000.00 
   
Findings that need to be made: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of install two small storage sheds at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the request  
2. Approve the request with conditions.  
3. Reject the request 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
 
  



 
VIEW OF DWELLING FROM CAPRI ROAD 

 

 
  



         

X 
   

Re
m

ov
e 

Sh
ed

 

W
ol

le
, 1

05
 C

ap
ri

 R
d.

 
 



                      

W
ol

le
, 1

05
 C

ap
ri

 R
d 



                       

X 
   

Re
m

ov
e 

Sh
ed

 

W
ol

le
, 1

05
 C

ap
ri

 R
d.

 



 





 

 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 

 

 

BUSINESS REGISTRATIONS 

 

 



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUSINESS REGISTRATION REQUEST 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/8/2020] 

 
Item: 
Permit 0854 – 1750 Calle de Mercado, Suite 4, submitted by Tatsu Miyazaki for “World Class Gourmet, LLC”; a request 
for a business license to allow the applicant s to operate a restaurant and catering operation at this location. Zoned: 
General Commercial (C)  
 
Description of Business: 
The purpose of the application is to allow the applicant to use the commercial structure at this address for a catering and 
food preparation operation that will primarily provide food services for the private school next door (the Acton Academy) 
under a contract with Anna Biad, owner of both the building and the school. There will not be any restaurant operations at 
this time. The proposed use will not result in any changes to the occupancy of the structure or change the character of the 
area.  The building was originally designed as a restaurant. 
 
Consistency with the Code: 
The request is for a catering and food service operation in a commercial building originally designed as a restaurant and is 
consistent with all applicable sections of the MTC. There will be no changes to the structure.  
 
The proposed use will be consistent with the following section of the Code: 
Chapter 18.45 – C-COMMERCIAL ZONE 

18.45.020 Uses Permitted 
A building and premises on any lot in the C zone shall be used for the following purposes only: 
       Restaurants and other eating establishments 
 

The requested license will not result in any changes to the external physical elements or style of the structure.  There will 
be some cosmetic changes to the interior of the structure. Off-street parking is provided by a parking lot on the premises.   
 
Findings of Fact: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed business will not result in any changes to the commercial character of the structure. 
• This is a use that is allowed by the MTC in this zoning district. 
• The proposed use will not create any negative impacts to the area. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 

Approve the application.     
Approve the application with conditions. 
Reject the application. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
  





 
VIEW OF LOCATION FROM CALLE DE MERCADO 

 

 
 
  







 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUSINESS REGISTRATION REQUEST 
[PZHAC REVIEW –9/8/2020] 

 
Item: 
Permit 0855 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Roman Prieto for “Prieto Imports”;  a request for a business 
license to allow the applicant to operate a commercial retail operation at this location selling imported yard art and décor, 
Mexican pottery, custom wood chairs, and other imported and domestic gift items. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC)  
 
Description of Business: 
The purpose of the application is to allow the applicants to use part of their dwelling at this address as a home office for a 
business that provides for a consulting service that specializes in the historic preservation and conservation of structures.. 
The applicants will use the office for the clerical portion of their business, all preservation and restoration work will be 
done at the client’s location. Clients will not come to the residence. The proposed use will not result in any changes to the 
occupancy of the structure, or change the character of the area.   
 
Consistency with the Code: 
The request is for a home office in the Historic Residential (HR) zone, and is consistent with all applicable sections of the 
MTC. There will be no changes to the structure. The portion of the structure to be used for the office was originally 
designed and built for use as a residence, and will remain without changes as part of the residence.   
 
The proposed use will be consistent with the following sections of the Code: 
Chapter 18.40 – HISTORICAL COMMERCIAL ZONE (HC) 

18.40.020 – Uses Permitted 
Uses permitted in the H-C zone are as follows: 

Commercial uses allowed in C zone and residential uses subject to approval of the planning, zoning and historical 
appropriateness commission upon application and approval of a development plan. [Ord. 2001-04 § 1; Ord. 94-06 
§ 1; prior code § 11-2-11.5.B] 

Uses permitted in the C zone (Section 18.45.020) include, but are not limited to:  
Clothing stores, dry goods stores, furniture stores, gift shops, notions stores, secondhand stores, and several other 
operations that could be considered very similar to the proposed use. 

 
The requested license will not result in any changes to the external physical elements or style of the structure. There is an 
open area alongside the commercial building that will be used as a display area for the business.  There will be some 
cosmetic changes to the interior of the structure. The business will be subject to a $150 per year parking fee to make up 
for the deficiency in off-street parking. 
 
Findings of Fact: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed business will not result in any changes to the commercial character of the structure. 
• This is a use that is allowed by the MTC in this zoning district. 
• The proposed use will not create any negative impacts to the area. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 

Approve the application.     
Approve the application with conditions. 
Reject the application. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
  





 
VIEW OF LOCATION FROM AVENIDA DE MESILLA 

 

 
 

 
  







 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 

 

 

PZHAC DECISIONS 

SIGN PERMIT 

 
 
 

  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

SIGN REQUEST 
“Prieto Imports” 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
Item: 
Case 061112 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Roman Prieto for “Prieto Imports”; a request for a sign permit to 
install a sign on a business at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
 
Description of Work to be Done:  
The applicant would like to install a two sided freestanding sign (12.5 square foot on each side) metal sign with black 
lettering on a teal background (see attached diagram) from an existing pole on the property (see attached photo).   
 
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine if the proposed sign will be consistent with the following Section of the Sign Code 
(Chapter 18.65) that specifically apply to this project. 
18.65.160 Freestanding signs. 

18.65.160 Freestanding signs. 
A. A freestanding sign (ground-based or post) may be permitted where a business establishment is set back 
from a street alignment of building facades more than 10 feet. A business establishment thus set back, in 
addition to the signs permitted upon the building itself, may maintain a freestanding sign of not more than 15 
square feet in area including the frame but not the supports, and such sign must relate to the conduct of the 
business within. If a building has an unencumbered front setback of at least 25 feet, a two-face freestanding 
sign with a maximum of 15 square feet of area on each face, sign dimensions no greater than six feet in any 
dimension will be permitted; provided, it relates to the business conducted on the premises. 
 
B. The bottom of freestanding signs supported by posts, which are not within two feet of the ground shall not 
be less than seven feet above the ground level. 
 
C. For freestanding ground-based signs, the wall of a freestanding ground-based sign shall have a maximum 
square footage of 15 square feet for the Historical Commercial (H-C) zone and 25 square feet for the General 
Commercial (GC) zone. The height of a ground-based sign will be no more than four feet high. The ground-
based signs shall also be required to have building permits for the structure complying with any building code 
requirements, clear sight triangle requirements or any other applicable codes or regulations. 
 
D. All freestanding signs with posts shall be securely constructed, and erected upon posts extending at least 
three feet below the surface of the ground. All wood post parts below ground level shall be treated to protect 
them from moisture by an approved method. 
 
E. No freestanding sign or any part thereof shall be more than 15 feet above the level of the street which the 
sign faces, or above the adjoining ground level, if such ground is higher than the street level. 
 
F. All parts of a freestanding sign shall be two feet inside the property line. [Ord. 2006-01 § 1; Ord. 2003-05 § 
4; Ord. 94-08; prior code § 11-3-16] (The proposed wall sign is less than 3.5 square feet in area. The sign will 
not project above the side of the building.) 

 
Findings of Fact: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of installing a two sided freestanding sign (12.5 square feet per side) on a pole at the 

front of the property at this address.  
• The subject property is zoned Historical Commercial (HC) 
• The proposed signs will not have negative impacts on the surrounding businesses in the area. 
• The proposed signs will be consistent with the Code. 

  
PZHAC OPTIONS: 

1. Recommend approval of the application to the BOT.     
2. Recommend approval of the application to the BOT with conditions.  
3. Reject the application.  

  





 
VIEW OF LOCATION FROM AVENIDA DE MESILLA 

 
 

 
 






	Blank Page



